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1. Nature of Motion  
This is a motion to dismiss the sole specification of Charge II, the sole specification of Charge III, and both specifications of Charge IV based on selective prosecution.

2. Summary of Facts  
Scott Sailor has been charged with: conspiracy to commit an indecent act in violation of Article 81, UCMJ; insubordination in violation of Article 91, UCMJ; sodomy in violation of Article 125, UCMJ; and an indecent act in violation of Article 134, UCMJ.  The incidents alleged on the charge sheet occurred on or about 01 August 2000. Specifically, Scott Sailor is accused of: engaging in sodomy with Mary Jane; committing an indecent act by engaging in sodomy with Mary Jane in the presence of Peter Parker; conspiracy to commit an indecent act; and insubordination.  Mary Jane has not been charged with any offenses at this time.
3. Discussion 
An allegation of selective or discriminatory prosecution arises under the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment and “although the Executive exercises broad discretion in deciding whether or not to prosecute, the decision is subject to review under the equal protection component of the Due Process Clause.”  See United States v. McKinley, 48 M.J. 280, 282 (C.A.A.F. 1998).  

The defense acknowledges a heavy burden in the establishment, prima facie, of selective or vindictive prosecution by showing: (1) the accused has been singled out for prosecution while others similarly situated by conduct forming the basis of the charge or charges against him have not suffered accusation as well, and (2) there is bad faith discrimination or invidious behavior on the part of the government; particularly, the prosecution is based on an impermissible consideration such as race, religion, or the prevention of the accused’s constitutional rights.  See United States v. Argo, 46 M.J. 454 (C.A.A.F. 1997) (quotations omitted); Wayte v. United States, 470 U.S. 598, 605 (U.S. 1985); see also  3 J. Israel, W. LaFave and N. King, Criminal Procedure, § 13.4 at 45 (2d ed. 1999 & Supp. 2000).  Usually claims must be examined in relation to legitimate law enforcement objectives under a “rational relationship” analysis.  Id. at 53.  Claims based on sexual discrimination, however, are subjected to a level of intermediate scrutiny.  Id.  The U.S. Supreme Court has found it illegitimate for the government to assume social roles are strictly a function of gender.  Laurence H. Tribe, American Constitutional Law § 16-26 at 1563 (2d ed. 1988).  

a. Insubordination
Scott Sailor has been charged, under Article 91, UCMJ, with insubordination for violating an order prohibiting the purchase of alcohol for a minor. Particularly, Scott Sailor is alleged to have purchased alcoholic drinks for Mary Jane at her request, according to her statement to NCIS. Additionally, orders exist on board XXXX, which prohibit the consumption of alcohol by minors.  However, Mary Jane has not been similarly charged with insubordination or failure to obey orders under Article 91 or Article 92 respectively.  

b. Sodomy
Mary Jane has not been charged with any of the crimes the two men have been charged with, most notably: sodomy.  Article 125, sodomy, is “[a]ny person subject to this chapter [engaging] in unnatural carnal copulation with another person of the … opposite sex ….”  Article 125, UCMJ, 10 USC § 925.  As the explanation for the article states, a person conducts unnatural copulation by taking into their mouth the sexual organ of another person.  Id at IV-79.  Scott Sailor’s charge sheet, dated 01 January 2001, alleges that Scott Sailor did “commit sodomy with Avionics Technician Mary Jane, U.S. Naval Reserve.”  Obviously, Mary Jane could have been, and should have been, charged with this offense against the UCMJ, just like Scott Sailor. Because the charge alleged consensual sodomy, not forcible sodomy, if Scott Sailor can be charged with violating the Code in this act, then Mary Jane should also be charged.
c. Indecent Acts with Another

Scott Sailor has been charged with one specification of committing an indecent act with another in violation of Article 134 based on the sodomy alleged to have occurred between Scott Sailor and Mary Jane, while she and Peter Parker were engaged in sexual intercourse.  Both Peter Parker and Scott Sailor have been charged due to this alleged act, but Mary Jane has not.  

Scott Sailor has been purposely charged with these violations and a co-actor, not just a person similarly situated in a general proposition, but a complicit perpetrator, Mary Jane, has not been charged.  Therefore, Scott Sailor’s situation easily meets the first two prongs of the required elements for vindictive prosecution, that others similarly situated have not been prosecuted. Wayte at 605. 

The last element requires an intermediate level of scrutiny into the arbitrariness of the vindictive prosecution in light of gender classification.  It should be noted that an “enforcement classification is ‘arbitrary’ only if ‘people have been classified according to criteria which are clearly irrelevant to law enforcement purposes.’” Israel, supra at 53.  All of these charges are charges that would carry penalties for Mary Jane, if they were charged. To ignore the orders violation and other Code-prohibited actions of Mary Jane demonstrates to all female sailors that they may act outside the UCMJ, in sexual activities, and not suffer any consequences; disparately it shows male sailors that only they will be liable for their actions while their partners will be given a free pass.  This type of tactic is insulting to respectable, law-abiding women of the armed forces and should be handled in a manner which ensures and promotes equality before the law.

4. Relief Requested 
Because the selective prosecution does not relate to the guilt or innocence of the accused “’but rather addresses itself to a constitutional defect in the institution of the prosecution,’ the claim should be treated as an application to the court for a dismissal or quashing of the prosecution.” Israel, supra at 45.  Scott Sailor requests a dismissal of the sole specifications of Charges II, III, and IV. 

5. Burden of Proof
The initial burden of proof is on the defense.  Once a prima facie case has been made, the burden shifts to the government. See Wayte v. United States, 470 U.S. 598, 625 (U.S. 1985). The Supreme Court also stated that to get discovery on this issue, the only burden required is non-frivolousness. Id. 
6. Oral Argument
The defense requests oral argument on this motion.

7. Evidence
The accused will present the following evidence in support of this motion:
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